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Lincoln Memorial Cemetery

4001 Suitland Road

Suitland, Prince George’s County
1927

Private

Lincoln Memorial Cemetery in Suitland, Maryland, sx@stablished in 1927 by James Easley Edmundsgaiéi attorney and real
estate developer. The park-like grounds were desligny landscape architect John H. Small of WasbmdPC. The cemetery
provided a dignified final resting place for Afrit&Americans in an era when burial grounds for vehatad African-Americans were
segregated, and cemeteries were in short suppigibistrict. In the 1920s and 1930s, Lincoln Meialowas one of only two known
public cemeteries for African-Americans locatedhia metropolitan area. The cemetery was appareathed to evoke positive
associations with Abraham Lincoln in its potenti@rket, and the founding board included some ofitbet prominent African-
American leaders in the District in the early twiettit century. Lincoln Memorial Cemetery is signéit for its association with
African-American life in the era of government-spored segregation and as an example of early wtbrdentury trends in
cemetery development.

Lincoln Memorial Cemetery comprises nearly 108 scom land that slopes upward from Suitland Roathemorth to a wide
plateau. At the rear of the cemetery, the landedafpwnward towards a section of woods; beyondavtizads are tracks belonging to
the Washington Metro. There are level, low-lyingtgms on the west and south west. The westerinseat the cemetery is
bordered by woods. On the east, the cemetery tebed by the grounds of Washington National Cemeter

Just inside the cemetery entrance from SuitlandlRoa the east side of the cemetery road is thestawy brick administration
building. The building is in fair condition andssll in use although scheduled for renovation. tBast of the administration
building, the cemetery road branches east andamgkloops around the cemetery with branches thatipaccess to all sections. The
majority of the grave markers are either granitedstéones or flush plagues. The headstones mankdndi graves or family lots.
Bronze, granite, or marble flush plaques mark iilial graves, and can either identify separateegpots or individuals buried in a
family lot. Less prevalent are family mausoleuntatigary, and memorials. Overall, the grave markesgrounds are in good
condition.

Lincoln Memorial Cemetery possesses a moderatégtolavel of integrity. Changes in vegetation andracrease in the number of
grave markers reflect the passage of time and 86Gs\a& continuous use of the site as a burial gto@f the two original buildings

on the site, only one, the lodge remains; a seboiiding, the chapel, was demolished by the owneing the survey period.

Overall, Lincoln Memorial Cemetery retains its an@ design, setting, location, workmanship, matleriand feeling, and association
with the historic period.
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1. Name of Property (indicate preferred name)

historic Lincoln Memorial Cemetery
other
2. Location
street and number 4001 Suitland Road not for publication
city, town Suitland, Maryland __vicinity
county Prince George’s County

3. Owner of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owners)

name Osiris Holding of Maryland, Inc./StoneMor Partndrsp.

street and number 155 Rittenhouse Circle

telephone 215.826.2800

city, town Bristol state PA

zip code 19007-1617

4. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Prince George’s County liber folio
city, town Upper Marlboro tax map 80 tax parcel 18 tax ID number 0551846
5. Primary Location of Additional Data
Contributing Resource in National Register District
Contributing Resource in Local Historic District
Determined Eligible for the National Register/Maryland Register
Determined Ineligible for the National Register/Maryland Register
Recorded by HABS/HAER
Historic Structure Report or Research Report at MHT
Xx___ Other:__Prince George’s County Planning Department, MNCPPC
6. Classification
Category Ownership Current Function Resource Count
X___district public agriculture landscape Contributing Noncontributing
building(s) X__private commerce/trade recreation/culture 1 buildings
structure both defense religion 1 sites
site domestic social 2 structures
object education transportation objects
funerary work in progress 2 2 Total
government unknown
health care vacant/not in use Number of Contributing Resources
industry X___other: cemetery previously listed in the Inventory

0



7. Description Inventory No. PG 75A-030

Condition
___excellent ___deteriorated
X __good ___ruins
__fair ___ altered

Prepare both a one paragraph summary and a comprehensive description of the resource and its various elements as it
exists today.

SUMMARY

Lincoln Memorial Cemetery is located in Suitlandatyland, within one-half of a mile from the Marythistrict of Columbia
border. The cemetery comprises nearly 108 acredlofg terrain. The designed landscape featuresiradrees and shrubs near the
road and in sections south of the administratididing. At the rear (south) and on the western sifihe property there are low
lying sections bordered by woods. Adjacent to éametery on the east are the grounds of Washingatiomil Cemetery. Grave
markers in Lincoln Memorial Cemetery include grarfieadstones, granite obelisks, flush plaquesarfitgrand of bronze, and
mausoleums. There are also a number of memorialsrimy individuals not buried here. At the cemetenyrance is a two-story
brick administration building with a modern offia@nex. A large brick, Colonial Revival style buiidithat was the cemetery’s
former chapel was demolished by the owner in sunZ6es.

DESCRIPTION

Lincoln Memorial Cemetery is located in Suitlandatyland, within one-half of a mile from the Marythistrict of Columbia
border. The cemetery comprises nearly 108 acrelnahthat slopes upward from Suitland Road omtitgh to a wide plateau. At
the rear of the cemetery, the land slopes downweawdrds a section of woods; beyond the woods ak¢rbelonging to the
Washington Metro. There are level, low-lying sesti@n the west and south west. The western seatithe cemetery is bordered by
woods. On the east, the cemetery is bordered bgrthends of Washington National Cemetery. Oveth#,cemetery grounds are in
good condition.

The cemetery entrance is on the north off of SuitlRoad. Stone walls flank the entrance, and bigas svith the cemetery name and
address. Just beyond the entrance, on the easifditie cemetery road, is the two-story brick CadbRevival style administration
building. The two-story, 3 x 2 bay, side-gableldhnig is clad with a Flemish brick bond. There tinee inset, front-gable dormers
on the facade and rear elevation. The dormers $iagée, six-over-six, double-hung wood sash wing@nd wood sills. Windows
on the first-story are single, six-over-six, douhleng wood sash, with brick jackarches and dec@atnetal bars. The entrance is in
the end-bay with an original wood paneled door \aifive-arched light transom and Colonial Revivabdsurround. The building is
in fair condition and is still in use although sdhked for renovation.

Directly south of the entrance is an island thattams a bust of the cemetery’s namesake, withugladponoring the founder, James
Easley Edmunds, and B. Prescott Edmunds and WiMarEdmunds, sons of the founder who served relsfebeas president and
executive vice president of the cemetery. The cerpebad branches east and west and loops aroanmkthetery with branches that
permit access to all sections. Connected to thiesades of the administration building is a one-gtowodular office building that
contains the sales offices for Lincoln Memorial Geny and Washington National Cemetery. The officeex is scheduled for
demolition and a more permanent addition consttatecording to the cemetery supervisor.

At the front of the property, near the administratbuilding, there are stands of mature trees hnths. There are also mature trees
and shrubs located throughout the sections immedgliabuth and southwest of the administration lngdand offices. Beyond this
section -- on the plateau, the gently sloping sedd the rear, and the low-lying area to the wegégetation is sparse. According to
a cemetery employee, the oldest sections of thetgnare D, E, and G. [See map for section deS@gma] Sections D and E,
located south of the administration building, apgeacontain the oldest shrubs and trees, and grer&ers and memorials from the

! Telephone interview with Mr. Youse, supervisoiGafdar Hill, Lincoln Memorial, and Washington Natidcemeteries, 12 May
2008
2 Telephone interview with Mr. Youse.
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first decades of the cemetery. A brick chapel wasted in Section H, at the convergence of sectihri3, E, and I. The chapel was
demolished during the survey period, between Map® August 22, 2008.

The majority of the grave markers in Lincoln MenabiCemetery are either granite headstones or fllejues. The headstones mark
individual graves or family lots. Bronze, granite,marble flush plagues mark individual graves, eawl either identify separate
grave plots or individuals buried in a family laess prevalent are family mausoleums, statuary nagmhorials. The family
mausoleums line the south side of the road diveagiens H and D. While the headstones are gendratjpod condition, a number

of the bronze plaques have settled and are pgrtibcured. Some of them appear to have been ddnggeowing or other
maintenance equipment.

Based on a comparison of historical photos andrifg®ms reproduced in newspaper articles and didegnents published during the
1930s and 1940s, Lincoln Memorial Cemetery appeap®ssess a moderate-to-high level of integrityari@es in vegetation and an
increase in the number of grave markers reflecptsage of time and 80 years of continuous uieedfite as a burial grounds for
African-Americans in Prince George’s County. Of thginal two buildings on the site, only one, thdge remains; a second
building, the chapel, was demolished by the owneing the summer of 2008. Overall, Lincoln Memor@metery retains its
original design, setting, location, workmanship tenals, and feeling, and association with thednistperiod.



8. Significance Inventory No. PG: 75A-030

Period Areas of Significance Check and justify below

_1600-1699 __agriculture ___economics __ health/medicine __ performing arts

_ 1700-1799 __ archeology __ education __industry __ philosophy

_1800-1899 ___architecture __ engineering ___invention __ politics/government

x1900-1999 __art ___entertainment/ __landscape architecture __ religion

__2000- xcommerce recreation _ law ___science
___ communications xethnic heritage __literature xsocial history
__community planning  __ exploration/ __ maritime history __ transportation
___conservation settlement __ military ___other:

Specific dates 1927 Architect/Builder  John H. Small, Landscape Architect

Construction dates c¢. 1928

Evaluation for:

National Register Maryland Register X not evaluated

Prepare a one-paragraph summary statement of significance addressing applicable criteria, followed by a narrative discussion of the
history of the resource and its context. (For compliance projects, complete evaluation on a DOE Form — see manual.)

SUMMARY

Lincoln Memorial Cemetery was chartered by theestdtMaryland in September 192The business was founded by James Easley
Edmunds, an attorney and real estate developerlfssrohburg, Virginia. His Washington, DC-area pagincluded the

subdivisions of Richmond Park, Cleveland Park, @me@apital Heights, and Barnaby Maridn July of 1927, Edmunds purchased
two tracts of land comprising approximately 164eador $43,000 from John A. Baker of Washingtory€iThe land was part of a
larger property known as “Nonesuch,” and previoasyBrothers Joint Interest.” The land may haverbietended for residential
development, since the mortgage contract statés‘ththe said land is divided into building lotdere shall be sufficient trees on
each lot to shade or ornamentfitfi December of the same year, Bell transferreda®8s of the property to the Lincoln Memorial
Cemetery Corporation.

At the time of its founding, Lincoln Memorial Cersey appears to have been one of only two cemetieritbe area established to

provide a dignified place of burial for African-Ameans! (The other cemetery, Harmony Cemetery, foundekB29, was located at
Ninth Street and Rhode Island Avenue, N.E.) Theviirg African-American population provided a readgniket for the new venture
in a time when burial grounds, like education, esgpient, and housing, still denied access basedam Between 1910 and 1930,
the African-American population of the District leased by more than one third, with larger increas¢he two following decadés.

According to newspaper accounts, the grounds veerdscaped by John H. Small, “one of Washingtontedchtandscape architects.”
Small also planned the cemetery’s lodge and cHapethe exclusive Maryland Colonial typ& The layout and management of the

3 “Lincoln Memorial Cemetery Now in Thirteenth Yeaihe Washington Tribune, February 15, 1941

*S. Garland Hamner, “James Easley Evans, 1860-1P5&@eedings of the Virginia Bar Association, V68, 1952: 136-137

® Prince George’s County Land Records, Deed: 288288 grantee was (Miss) Jesse Bell, who may hawked as a secretary or
clerk for Edmunds.

®304:46

’ Information on the founding and early developnfrthe cemetery is derived from newspaper artiddsertisements, and land
records. Minutes of Board of Trustees meetingfefli920s and 1930s are in the possession of thentwwner who denied access
to these documents.

8 Campbell Gibson and Gay Yung, Table 23. Distrfa€olumbia,Historical Census on Population Totals by Race, 1790-1990, and
by Hispanic Origin, 1970-1990, September 2002, Washington, D.C.: U.S. CensusdBurvailable on the World Wide Web:
http://www.census.gov/population/www/documentatimps0056/twps0056.html

® The Washington Tribune, 15 February 1941. Small held a master’s in langis@achitecture from Cornell University and ran a
successful florist business founded by his grahéfaih 1855, John H. Small and Sons (Obituahg Washington Post, 11
November 1965)
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cemetery combines elements of the “lawn-park” sahadopted by many in American cemeteries in thenitidteenth through the
early twentieth centuries and the “memorial padtiame introduced in the first quarter of the twethticentury'® While both types
of cemeteries are located in the suburbs, Lincodémidrial Cemetery is more pastoral and park-likddsign than the suburban
setting of the memorial park. The landscape of dindMemorial is also more picturesque than thea aiemorial park, with a greater
number of granite headstones and mausoleums thaattar'' While both cemetery types were managed by an gnemeur and
superintendent, the lawn-park also has trusteézhotographs of Lincoln Memorial Cemetery repralin the Washington Afro-
American in the early 1940s provide an idea offfaperty’s early features. There is the entranc8uitiand Road flanked by walls;
a wide circular driveway edged with tall trees;radal expanse of lawn with flowering ornamentaldteced among upright granite
monuments; and two stately mausoleums sitting teettte road on a hillside. On the lower right corokthe page there is an
informal portrait of the cemetery’s founder, JHemonds, Superintendent C. Tiffany Toliver, andtbard of directors standing
before the bust of Abraham Lincoln on a granitegstal at the entrance.

The naming of the cemetery for Abraham Lincoln shdfe new venture’s awareness of the esteem hdlttimgr freedmen and
their sons and daughters for the assassinatedlpresA 1942 advertisement describes the cemeteffte Nation’s Shrine,” and
prominently features the image and words of LinddIfihe aim of the cemetery according to a 1%4ibune article, “is to be a credit
to the glorius (sic) name of Lincoln and to be atstanding as any cemetery in the United States.”

Edmunds assembled a Board of Directors for the cewmetery that must have provided instant credjdinong African-American
residents of the District and suburban Maryland.ofimthe founding directors were Rev. Dr. WilliamJarvis, then in his twentieth
year as pastor of New Bethel Baptist Church; Mamai€h Terrell, civil rights activist and suffragi®ev. Mr. William H. Jernagin,
pastor of “the largest Negro congregation in Wagtuin,” Mt. Carmel Baptist Church, and a leaderttia battle for his people to
gain racial equality* Also serving on the board was the Rev. Dr. C.Trilslyy pastor of the Vermont Avenue Baptist Church.

The growth of the cemetery indicates that the I@datan-American community was highly receptivetb& new venture. By 1938,
more than 3,000 individuals had been interred irchin Memoriaf*® Less than four years after its founding, the cenyesought to
expand its grounds above the legally permittedddi@s™® It is not known whether this suit was succesdfalyever, in 1931, Jesse
Bell deeded the remaining 64.15 acres purchas&€é2i to Washington National Cemetery Corporatiomo Years later, a land
exchange between Lincoln Memorial Cemetery andhtiacent Washington National Cemetery establishedoundary between the
two properties. By 1941, burials were approachivey#,000 mark! By 1996, there were approximately 51,000 persotesried in
Lincoln Memorial Cemetery.

9 David Charles Sloan@he Last Great Necessity, Baltimore: The Johns Hopkins University Pres891t 4-5
i David Charles Sloan@he Last Great Necessity, Ibid.
Ibid.
'3 The Washington Afro-American, 50" Anniversary Edition, 19 September 1942. The setéquote also highlights desirable
attributes of a lawn-park cemetery.
14 Obituary, The Washington Post, 16 July 1955
*Lincoln Memorial Cemetery Passes 3,000 Mark iniglst” The Washington Tribune, 20 August 1938. The 1938 and 1941 Tribune
articles are fulsome in their praise of the cenyeseiperintendent C. Tiffany Toliver.
16 The Washington Post, 21 March 1931, 3. There would be no oppositiomfreeighbors, according to the attorney who intreduc
the hill, since “the grounds have been improved laealtified.”
171941 Tribune
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Over the years, Lincoln Memorial Cemetery has stagthe final resting place of many prominent &fn-Americans, including
religious leaders, politicians, and acadenfds. the first decade, renowned African-Americangdalithere include Charles A.
Tignor, physician and former instructor at Howarddital School (1936); Eleanor Robinson Lee, teaahdra founder of the
Teacher’s Benefit and Annuity Society (1938); arell)XMiller, mathematician, educator, and columiit@39). The cemetery is also
the location of memorials to prestigious figuresiéd elsewhere, including Robert Herberton Tertallyyer and municipal court
judge, buried in Harmony Cemetery in 1925; Revei@rdrge W. Lee, pastor of the Vermont Avenue Bagtisirch, who died in
1910, and Henry Lincoln Johnson, former Recordddedds and Republican national committeeman, wa idi 1925 and was
buried in Harmony Cemetery. Two 1932 newspapetlagirecord the pomp associated with the dedicatidhe Johnson memorial,
erected by the Henry Lincoln Lodge of the ColordksBf New York™®

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Lincoln Memorial Cemetery in Suitland, Maryland, sx@stablished in 1927 by James Easley Edmundsgaidi attorney and real
estate developer. The park-like grounds were desidny landscape architect John H. Small of WasbmdPC. The cemetery
provided a dignified final resting place for AfritsAmericans in an era when burial grounds for vehatad African-Americans were
segregated, and cemeteries in short supply in tbigid. In the 1920s and 1930s, Lincoln Memoriasmne of only two known
public cemeteries for African-Americans locatedhia metropolitan area. The cemetery was appareathed to evoke positive
associations with Abraham Lincoln in its potentisrket, and the founding board included some ofrthst prominent African-
American leaders in the District in the early twiettit century. Lincoln Memorial Cemetery is signiit as an example of early
twentieth century trends in American cemetery dgwelent and for its association with African-Ameridée in the era of
government-sponsored segregation. The Lincoln M&inGemetery has significant character, interestjalue as part of the
development, heritage, or cultural characterisifahe County, exemplifies the cultural, econorsiagial, political, or historic
heritage of the county and its communities, andesgnts an established and familiar visual featfitte community due to its
singular physical characteristics or landscape.

18 A hand-out distributed by the sales staff to pt#plot purchasers lists 36 “Influential Africamericans” buried in Lincoln
Memorial cemetery including professional athletaggertainers, and media personalities
19 The Washington Post, 26 and 27 June, 1932
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Deed
288:223
July 29, 1927

Deed of Trust
304:46
July 29, 1927

Deed
313:248
December 8, 1927

Deed
360:195
January 26, 1931

Deed of Exchange
391: 405
February 1, 1933

Deed
745: 277
August 18, 1944

Declaration
WWW2233:324
July 16, 1958

Deed
VJ 7996:0780
June 12, 1991

Chain of Title

Tax Map 51, Block 1-A, Lot 17

John A. Baker, widower, ofahiagton City to Jesse Bell, unmarried, of Lynclghiuirginia
(Two tracts: 125.5 aered 38.65 acres, $10) Tract 1: Lot 6 of tract ofll&Nonesuch”. Tract 2:
southern part of lot 6 of “Nonek” beginning at the south line of the County Rddame land
Baker received from F. Snowdeih Frustee (Liber JWB 29, folio 695; July 26 18§94

Jesse Bell to Mary C. BaRem3aker Robinson (Acreage same as deed of even $43,000,
interest 6 % per annum)

Jesse Bell to Lincoln Memb@ametery Corp. (100 acres, $10) Being a parefiand conveyed
to Jesse Bell by JohnakeB (Liber 288 Folio 223)

Jesse Bell to Washington dveti Cemetery Corp. (64.15 acres, $10) Save arepet€©0 acres
conveyed by Jesse Belhtmoln Memorial Cemetery Corp. (Liber 313 Folid8); leaves rest
containing 64.15 acres. Subjegiroportionate part of Deed of Trust 304/46; hatadue $33,000.

Lincoln Memorial Cemeteryr@oand Washington National Cemetery Corp. (94résac

and 64.9 acres) Partigsatljacent tracts of land and desire to estaldiigion line between
properties. Land on northwest side of division liad.incoln; land on southeast side to Washington
National Cemetery Corp; Lincoln Memorial Cemeteigyri gives 64.9 acres to Washington
National Cemetery Corp and Washington National €&eny Corp. gives Lincoln Memorial
Cemetery Corp. 94.7 acres

Joseph Fleichman and Friedéeichman (wife) to Lincoln Memorial Cemetery 1o
(7.898 acres, $7,747)

Lincoln Memorial Cemetery Coigp Washington National Cemetery Corp. ($1) Essablk
boundary between 7.898 &raict conveyed to Lincoln Memorial by Fleichmaibér 745
Folio 277) and the 64.9 acres owned by WashingtatioNal Cemetery Corp.

Lincoln Memorial Park, Ino. Osiris Holding of Maryland, Inc. (107.898 ar&405,087)
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10. Geographical Data

Acreage of surveyed property 107.898
Acreage of historical setting 107.898
Quadrangle name Washington East Quadrangle scale: 1:25000

Verbal boundary description and justification

Lincoln Memorial Cemetery is bounded on the nogtiShitland Road, on the east by the WashingtonadNatiCemetery, and on
the south and west by the legal boundaries of Pag;el'ax Map 80. The boundaries coincide with ¢hestablished in the 1927
deed conveying the land to the Lincoln Memorial @&ry Corporation, with the eastern boundary eistaddl in its 1933
agreement with the Washington National CemeterypQmation.

11 Form Prepared by

nameftitle Rosemary Faya Prola, Architectural Historian

organization The Ottery Group for M-NCPPC Planning Departmedate August 24, 2008
street & number 3420 Morningwood Drive, Suite 100 telephone  301.562.1975
city or town Olney state MD 20832

The Maryland Inventory of Historic Properties was officially created by an Act of the Maryland Legislature
to be found in the Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA,
1974 supplement.

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and record purposes only
and do not constitute any infringement of individual property rights.

return to: Maryland Historical Trust
Maryland Department of Planning
100 Community Place
Crownsville, MD 21032-2023
410-514-7600



